

# Royal



# Gazette

## Part II Regulations under the Regulations Act

---

*Printed by the Queen's Printer*

Halifax, Nova Scotia

Vol. 41, No. 9

April 28, 2017

### Contents

Act	Reg. No.	Page
<b>Crop and Livestock Insurance Act</b>		
Poultry Insurance Plan—amendment.....	67/2017	322
<b>Dairy Industry Act</b>		
Bulk Haulage Regulations—amendment.....	64/2017	318
—amendment.....	65/2017	319
Milk Pricing Regulations—amendment.....	66/2017	320
<b>Fire Safety Act</b>		
Fire Safety Regulations—amendment.....	68/2017	323
<b>House of Assembly Management Commission Act</b>		
House of Assembly Management Commission Regulations—amendment.....	62/2017	314
<b>Petroleum Products Pricing Act</b>		
Prescribed Petroleum Products Prices.....	63/2017	315
Prescribed Petroleum Products Prices.....	69/2017	329

**In force date of regulations:** As of March 4, 2005\*, the date a regulation comes into force is determined by subsection 3(6) of the *Regulations Act*. The date a regulation is made, the date a regulation is approved, the date a regulation is filed and any date specified in a regulation are important to determine when the regulation is in force.

\*Date that subsections 3(6) and (7) and Sections 11 and 13 of the *Regulations Act* and amendments to the *Regulations Act* made by Chapter 46 of the Acts of 2004 were proclaimed in force.

**N.S. Reg. 62/2017**

Made: April 4, 2017

Filed: April 6, 2017

House of Assembly Management Commission Regulations—amendment

Order dated April 4, 2017

Amendment to regulations made by the House of Assembly Management Commission pursuant to subsection 27(1) of the *House of Assembly Management Commission Act***House of Assembly Management Commission****Amendment to the House of Assembly Management Commission Regulations**

I certify that the House of Assembly Management Commission, pursuant to subsection 27(1) of Chapter 5 of the Acts of 2010, the *House of Assembly Management Commission Act*, at a meeting held on April 4, 2017, amended the *House of Assembly Management Commission Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 43/2013, in the manner set forth in the following attached Schedule “A”, effective on and after April 4, 2017.

Signed at Halifax, in Halifax Regional Municipality, Nova Scotia on April 5, 2017.

per: sgd: *Annette M. Boucher*  
Annette M. Boucher, Q.C.  
Assistant Clerk, House of Assembly

**Schedule “A”****Amendment to the *House of Assembly Management Commission Regulations*  
made by the House of Assembly Management Commission  
pursuant to subsection 27(1) of Chapter 5 of the Acts of 2010,  
the *House of Assembly Management Commission Act***

- 1 Subsection 23(6) of the *House of Assembly Management Commission Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 43/2013, made by the House of Assembly Management Commission, is amended by adding “, or any other department responsible and any other person responsible for making asset disposal directives”, immediately after “Officer”.
- 2 Subsections 23(8) and (9) of the regulations are repealed and the following subsections substituted:
  - (8) The member shall return the item to the House to be disposed of or otherwise comply with the Clerk’s directions, at which time the item will be removed from the member’s inventory.
  - (9) When disposing of computing devices, the member may exercise one of the following options:
    - (a) repurchase the device at the then fair-market value as determined by the Clerk or a person designated by the Clerk, for the item; or
    - (b) allow the item to be disposed of in accordance with the asset disposal process.
- 3 Subsection 23(11) of the regulations is amended by striking out “consult with Procurement Services, Department of Internal services, to”.

- 4 Subsection 23(12) of the regulations is amended by striking out “return it to the Department of Transportation and Infrastructure Renewal for disposal” and substituting “follow the asset disposal process”.
- 5 Subsection 23(13) of the regulations is repealed.
- 6 Subsection 28(1) of the regulations is amended by
- (a) adding “acceptable to the Speaker” immediately after “reason” in clause (c);
  - (b) striking out “is required” in clause (e) and substituting “needs”;
  - (c) adding “for” immediately after “Halifax” in clause (e); and
  - (d) striking out “an early morning” in clause (e) and substituting “a”.
- 

**N.S. Reg. 63/2017**

Made: April 6, 2017

Filed: April 7, 2017

Prescribed Petroleum Products Prices

Order dated April 6, 2017  
made by the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board  
pursuant to Section 14 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act*  
and Sections 16 to 19 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations*

**Order****M07996****In the matter of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act*****- and -****In the matter of prescribing prices for petroleum products  
pursuant to Section 14 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act* and  
Sections 16 to 19 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations*****Before:** Roberta J. Clarke, Q.C., Member

**Whereas** the purpose of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations* is to ensure just and reasonable prices for specified petroleum products taking into consideration the objectives of preserving the availability of such products in rural areas, stabilizing prices of such products and minimizing the variances in prices of such products across the Province;

**And whereas** the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board (“Board”) considered the manner in which it would proceed to set petroleum product prices in its decision, 2006 NSUARB 108, issued on October 16, 2006;

**And whereas** the Board revised the wholesale margin effective January 4, 2013, in its decision, 2012 NSUARB 213, issued on December 12, 2012;

**And whereas** the Board revised the retail margin and the transportation allowance effective October 28, 2016, in its decision, 2016 NSUARB 168, issued on September 26, 2016;

**And whereas** the average of the average of the daily high and low reported product prices (in Canadian cents) for the week ended April 5, 2017, are:

Grade 1 Regular gasoline	59.3¢ per litre
Ultra-low-sulfur diesel oil	55.6¢ per litre

**Now therefore** the Board prescribes the benchmark prices for petroleum products to be:

Gasoline:	
Grade 1	59.3¢ per litre
Grade 2	62.3¢ per litre
Grade 3	65.3¢ per litre
Ultra-low-sulfur diesel oil	55.6¢ per litre

**And now therefore** the Board has determined, based on historical data regarding price changes and to achieve revenue neutrality, it is appropriate to apply, and the Board so orders, forward averaging corrections of:

Gasoline:	plus 1.0¢ per litre
Ultra-low-sulfur diesel oil:	plus 0.3¢ per litre

**And whereas** a winter blending adjustment of plus 2.1¢ per litre is required for ultra-low-sulfur diesel oil;

**And now therefore** the Board prescribes the prices for petroleum products as set forth in Schedule “A” effective on and after 12:01 a.m., April 7, 2017.

**Dated** at Halifax, Nova Scotia, this 6th day of April, 2017.

sgd: *Bruce A. Kiley*  
Clerk of the Board

#### Schedule “A”

**Prices Prescribed for Petroleum Products  
under the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act* and the  
*Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations*  
effective on and after 12:01 a.m. on April 7, 2017**

Nova Scotia Petroleum Price Schedule								
Petroleum Prices in Cents/Litre					Self-Service Pump Prices		Full-Service Pump Prices	
					(Pump Prices includes 15% HST)			
	Base Wholesale Price	Fed. Excise Tax	Prov. Tax	Wholesale Selling Price	Min	Max	Min	Max
<b>Zone 1</b>								
Regular Unleaded	67.5	10.0	15.5	93.0	112.8	115.0	112.8	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	70.5	10.0	15.5	96.0	116.3	118.4	116.3	999.9
Premium Unleaded	73.5	10.0	15.5	99.0	119.7	121.9	119.7	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	65.2	4.0	15.4	84.6	103.2	105.3	103.2	999.9
<b>Zone 2</b>								
Regular Unleaded	68.0	10.0	15.5	93.5	113.4	115.6	113.4	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	71.0	10.0	15.5	96.5	116.8	119.0	116.8	999.9
Premium Unleaded	74.0	10.0	15.5	99.5	120.3	122.5	120.3	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	65.7	4.0	15.4	85.1	103.7	105.9	103.7	999.9
<b>Zone 3</b>								
Regular Unleaded	68.4	10.0	15.5	93.9	113.8	116.0	113.8	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	71.4	10.0	15.5	96.9	117.3	119.5	117.3	999.9
Premium Unleaded	74.4	10.0	15.5	99.9	120.8	122.9	120.8	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	66.1	4.0	15.4	85.5	104.2	106.4	104.2	999.9

<b>Zone 4</b>								
Regular Unleaded	68.5	10.0	15.5	94.0	114.0	116.2	114.0	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	71.5	10.0	15.5	97.0	117.4	119.6	117.4	999.9
Premium Unleaded	74.5	10.0	15.5	100.0	120.9	123.0	120.9	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	66.2	4.0	15.4	85.6	104.3	106.5	104.3	999.9
<b>Zone 5</b>								
Regular Unleaded	68.5	10.0	15.5	94.0	114.0	116.2	114.0	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	71.5	10.0	15.5	97.0	117.4	119.6	117.4	999.9
Premium Unleaded	74.5	10.0	15.5	100.0	120.9	123.0	120.9	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	66.2	4.0	15.4	85.6	104.3	106.5	104.3	999.9
<b>Zone 6</b>								
Regular Unleaded	69.2	10.0	15.5	94.7	114.8	117.0	114.8	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	72.2	10.0	15.5	97.7	118.2	120.4	118.2	999.9
Premium Unleaded	75.2	10.0	15.5	100.7	121.7	123.9	121.7	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	66.9	4.0	15.4	86.3	105.1	107.3	105.1	999.9

**N.S. Reg. 64/2017 to 65/2017**

Made: October 5, 2016; March 28, 2017

Approved: April 5, 2017

Filed: April 11, 2017

Bulk Haulage Regulations—amendments

Order dated April 5, 2017

Amendment to regulations made by the Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia  
and approved by the Natural Products Marketing Council  
pursuant to clauses 15(1)(b) and (e) of the *Dairy Industry Act*

**Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia**

**Amendment to the *Bulk Haulage Regulations*  
made under the *Dairy Industry Act***

I certify that the Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia, pursuant to clause[s] 15(1)(b) and (e) of Chapter 24 of the Acts of 2000, the *Dairy Industry Act*, carried a motion to amend the *Bulk Haulage Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 23/2003, made by the Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia on July 17, 2002, and approved by the Natural Products Marketing Council on August 13, 2002, as follows:

- (a) on October 5, 2016, a motion to amend the regulations in the manner set forth in the attached Schedule “A”, effective on and after May 1, 2017; and
- (b) on March 28, 2017, a motion to amend the regulations in the manner set forth in the attached Schedule “B”, effective on and after May 1, 2017.

Signed at Truro, in the County of Colchester, Nova Scotia on April 7, 2017.

**Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia**

per: sgd: *B. Cameron*  
 Brian Cameron  
 General Manager

-----

**Approved by** the Natural Products Marketing Council at Truro, in the County of Colchester, Nova Scotia on April 5, 2017.

**Natural Products Marketing Council**

per: sgd: *E. A. Crouse*  
 Elizabeth A. Crouse, P.Ag.  
 General Manager

**N.S. Reg. 64/2017**

Bulk Haulage Regulations—amendment

**Schedule “A”**

**Amendment to the *Bulk Haulage Regulations*  
 made by the Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia  
 pursuant to clause[s] 15(1)(b) and (e) of Chapter 24 of the Acts of 2000,  
 the *Dairy Industry Act***

- 1 Subsection 3(3) of the *Bulk Haulage Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 23/2003, made by the Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia on July 17, 2002, and approved by the Natural Products Marketing Council on August 13, 2002, is repealed.
- 2 Subsection 4(3) is amended by adding “by” immediately before “or related”.
- 3 Subsection 5(1) is amended by adding “, skim milk” immediately after “shall deliver milk”.
- 4 Subsection 5(2) is amended by adding “licensed” immediately after “deliver milk to”.
- 5 The heading immediately preceding Section 7 is amended by adding “for farm milk pick-up” immediately after “Bulk haulage rates”.
- 6 ~~Subsection~~ [Clause] 7(a) is amended by striking out the words “for farm pick-up:” and substituting “for milk transported from farms that are on the standard schedule of having milk pick-up every second day:”.
- 7 ~~Subsection~~ [Clause] 7(b) is repealed and the following ~~subsection~~ [clause] substituted:
  - (b) Inhibitor truckload dumped administration fee: \$250 per contaminated compartment or load.
- 8 ~~Subsection~~ [Clause] 7(c) is repealed.
- 9 The regulations are amended by adding the following Sections immediately after Section 7:

**Bulk haulage charges paid by producers**

**7A** The following rates shall be the maximum bulk haulage rates to be charged to a producer by a transporter and shall be applicable to all transporters in the Province:

- (a) for milk transported from a farm that has milk pick-up every day: mandatory charge, calculated on all milk, in accordance with a Board policy established for the purpose of calculating the rate for every day pick-up;
- (b) for a second trip in one day by a bulk milk truck to a farm for milk pick up: charge of \$50 per return trip, in addition to the amount payable by the Board pursuant to ~~subsection~~ [clause] 7(a);
- (c) minimum charge: if the total amount payable during a week by the Board to a transporter pursuant to ~~subsection~~ [clause] 7(a) for milk transported from a farm is less than \$63, the producer that owns that farm must pay to the transporter the difference between \$63 and the amount paid by the Board for that week.

**Other bulk haulage charges**

**7B** The amounts to be paid by the Board to a transporter for all bulk haulage of milk except milk transported from farms as set out in ~~subsection~~ [clause] 7(a), including out-of-Province haulage, shall be determined by the Board by agreement with the transporter, taking into account the following criteria:

- (a) the pick-up location and destination of the milk, and the distance of the haul;
- (b) whether the haul is a one-way haul or the transporter has a back-haul of cargo;
- (c) the cost of fuel, labour, maintenance and other costs of the transporter;
- (d) the availability of other transporters for the haul, and the rates offered by those transporters.

10 Section 10 is repealed.

**N.S. Reg. 65/2017**

Bulk Haulage Regulations—amendment

**Schedule “B”**

**Amendment to the *Bulk Haulage Regulations*  
made by the Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia  
pursuant to clause 15(1)(b) of Chapter 24 of the Acts of 2000,  
the *Dairy Industry Act***

Section 7 of the *Bulk Haulage Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 23/2003, made by the Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia on July 17, 2002, and approved by the Natural Products Marketing Council on August 13, 2002, is amended by repealing clause (a) and substituting the following clause:

- (a) for milk transported from farms that are on the standard schedule of having milk pick-up every second day:

<b>Transporter</b>	<b>Maximum Rate/100 L</b>
Agropur Co-Operative	\$2.27

Agropur Scotsburn Division	\$3.15
Fisher Transport Limited	\$1.54
Rudy Burghardt	\$5.22

**N.S. Reg. 66/2017**

Made: March 28, 2017

Approved: April 5, 2017

Filed: April 11, 2017

Milk Pricing Regulations—amendment

Order dated April 5, 2017

Amendment to regulations made by the Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia  
and approved by the Natural Products Marketing Council  
pursuant to clauses 9(b) and 14(1)(c) of the *Dairy Industry Act*

**Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia**

**Amendment to the *Milk Pricing Regulations*  
made under the *Dairy Industry Act***

I certify that on March 28, 2017, the Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia, pursuant to clauses 9(b) and 14(1)(c) of Chapter 24 of the Acts of 2000, the *Dairy Industry Act*, as delegated by clause 2(1)(b) of the *Delegation of Powers to Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 136/2001, carried a motion to amend the *Milk Pricing Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 84/2008, made by the Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia on September 21, 2007, and approved by the Natural Products Marketing Council on February 12, 2008, in the manner set forth in the attached Schedule “A”, effective on and after May 1, 2017.

Signed at Truro, in the County of Colchester, Nova Scotia on April 7, 2017.

**Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia**

per: sgd: *B. Cameron*  
Brian Cameron  
General Manager

**Approved by** the Natural Products Marketing Council at Truro, in the County of Colchester, Nova Scotia on April 5, 2017.

**Natural Products Marketing Council**

per: sgd: *E. A. Crouse*  
Elizabeth A. Crouse, P.Ag.  
General Manager



## Schedule "A"

**Amendment to the *Milk Pricing Regulations*  
made by the Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia  
pursuant to clauses 9(b) and 14(1)(c) of Chapter 24 of the Acts of 2000,  
the *Dairy Industry Act***

† Subsection 3(1) of the *Milk Pricing Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 84/2008, made by the Dairy Farmers of Nova Scotia on September 21, 2007, and approved by the Natural Products Marketing Council on February 12, 2008, is repealed and the following subsection substituted:

- 3 (1) Except where otherwise specified in the National Ingredients Strategy Implementation Policy, milk processors in the Province must pay, on an F.O.B. plant basis, the prices of milk components set out in the following table for each class of milk specified:

<b>Component Prices for Classes of Milk</b>				
<b>Class of Milk</b>	<b>Butterfat (\$ per kg)</b>	<b>Protein (\$ per kg)</b>	<b>Other Solids (\$ per kg)</b>	<b>Solids-Non-Fat (\$ per hl)</b>
1(a)	7.6446			74.7200
1(b)	7.6446			60.4900
1(c)	Per current P5 policy for the 1c/4c Pricing Program for innovative products, the price discounts for milk cream and manufactured dairy products are respectively 25% for the first 12 months, 15% for the second 12-month period and 10% for the third 12-month period. The discounts will be deducted off the appropriate P5 target class component prices for approved products.			
2(a)	8.5525	5.9359	5.9359	
2(b)	8.5525	5.9359	5.9359	
3(a)	8.5525	12.7714	0.8707	
3(b)	8.5525	12.4242	0.8707	
3(c)(1)	8.5525	12.7714	0.8707	
3(c)(2)	8.5525	13.8584	0.8707	
4(a)	8.5525	5.3794	5.3794	
4(b)	8.5525	5.4880	5.4880	
4(c)	Per current P5 policy for the 1c/4c Pricing Program for innovative products, the price discounts for milk cream and manufactured dairy products are respectively 25% for the first 12 months, 15% for the second 12-month period and 10% for the third 12-month period. The discounts will be deducted off the appropriate P5 target class component prices for approved products.			
4(d)	8.5525	5.3794	5.3794	

**N.S. Reg. 67/2017**

Made: November 22, 2016

Approved: April 11, 2017

Filed: April 13, 2017

Poultry Insurance Plan—amendment

Order in Council 2017-111 dated April 11, 2017

Amendment to regulations made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
and approved by the Governor in Council  
pursuant to Section 6 of the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act*

The Governor in Council on the report and recommendation of the Minister of Agriculture dated March 1, 2017, and pursuant to Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989, the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act*, is pleased to approve amendments made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission to the *Poultry Insurance Plan*, N.S. Reg. 339/2007, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2007-394 dated July 13, 2007, in the manner set forth in Schedule “A”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation, effective on and after April 11, 2017.

**Schedule “A”****Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held November 22, 2016, passed a motion to amend the *Poultry Insurance Plan*, N.S. Reg. 339/2007, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2007-394 dated July 13, 2007, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Bible Hill, Nova Scotia, on December 6, 2016.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Poultry Insurance Plan*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

- 1 The *Poultry Insurance Plan*, N.S. Reg. 339/2007, made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2007-394 dated July 13, 2007, is amended by adding the following Section immediately after Section 7:

**Placement report**

**7A** No later than 7 days before placing a new flock in a production facility, an insured person must file a report with the Commission in a form determined by the Commission.

- 2 Subsection 9(1) of the plan is repealed and the following subsection substituted:

- 9 (1) For each class of poultry insured under this plan, the base premium rate must be set by the Commission and announced on or before April 1 in each year.
- 

**N.S. Reg. 68/2017**

Made: April 11, 2017

Filed: April 13, 2017

Fire Safety Regulations—amendment

Order in Council 2017-113 dated April 11, 2017  
Amendment to regulations made by the Governor in Council  
pursuant to Section 51 of the *Fire Safety Act*

The Governor in Council on the report and recommendation of the Minister of Municipal Affairs dated March 9, 2017, and pursuant to Section 51 of Chapter 6 of the Acts of 2002, the *Fire Safety Act*, is pleased to amend the *Fire Safety Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 48/2003, made by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2003-83 dated February 28, 2003, to adopt the 2015 edition of the National Fire Code and to make some minor housekeeping amendments, in the manner set forth in Schedule “A” attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation, effective on and after May 1, 2017.

**Schedule “A”**

**Amendment to the *Fire Safety Regulations*  
made by the Governor in Council under Section 51  
of Chapter 6 of the Acts of 2002,  
the *Fire Safety Act***

- 1 Clause 2(1)(e) of the *Fire Safety Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 48/2003, made by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2003-83 dated February 28, 2003, is amended by striking out “2010” and substituting “2015”.
- 2 Clause 3(1)(l) of the regulations is amended by striking out “Building, Fire and Technical Safety Division of the Department of Labour and Advanced Education” and substituting “Department responsible for the *Building Code Act*”.
- 3 Clause 5(1)(b) of the regulations is amended by striking out “Service Nova Scotia and Municipal Relations” and substituting “Municipal Affairs”.
- 4 Section 29 of the regulations is amended by
  - (a) striking out “CAN/ULC-S109M” in added Clause 2.3.1.3(2)(b) and substituting “CAN/ULC-S109-03”; and
  - (b) striking out “CAN/ULC-S102-03” in added Clause 2.3.1.3(3)(a) and substituting “CAN/ULC-S102-10”.
- 5 Section 30 of the regulations is amended by striking out “assembly” in added Sentences 2.7.1.3.(2), (3) and (4).
- 6 The regulations are further amended by adding the following Section immediately after Section 30:

**Additional functional statements and objectives for Table 2.14.1.1.**

**30A** Article 2.14.1.1 of the National Fire Code is modified by adding the following rows containing functional statements and objectives to Table 2.14.1.1. immediately after the rows containing functional statements and objectives for Sentence 2.7.1.3.(2):

(3)	[F10-OS3.7]
(4)	[F10-OS3.7]
(5)	[F10-OS3.7]
(6)	[F10-OS3.7]
<b>2.15.1.1. Appointment</b>	
(1)	[F12-OP1.2]
	[F12-OS1.2, OS1.5]
<b>2.15.1.2. Inspection</b>	
(1)	[F82-OS1.2, OS1.5]
(2)	[F12-OP1.2]
	[F12-OS1.5, OS1.2]

[Note: The brackets surrounding the text in the right-hand column of the table rows added to Table 2.14.1.1. are part of the regulations and do not indicate editorial corrections made by the Office of the Registrar of Regulations.]

7 Section 34 of the regulations is amended by

- (a) renumbering the provisions added to the National Fire Code as follows:
  - (i) from Section 6.9. to Section 6.8A.,
  - (ii) from Subsection 6.9.1. to Subsection 6.8A.1., and
  - (iii) from Article 6.9.1.1. to Article 6.8A.1.1.;
- (b) striking out “CAN/CSA-B72” in added Sentence 6.8A.1.1.(1) and substituting “CAN/CSA-B72-M87”.

8 The regulations are further amended by adding the following Section immediately after Section 34:

**Additional functional statements and objectives for Table 6.9.1.1.**

**34A** Article 6.9.1.1 of the National Fire Code is modified by adding the following rows containing functional statements and objectives to Table 6.9.1.1. immediately after the rows containing functional statements and objectives for Sentence 6.1.1.4.(1):

(2)	[F02-OP1.2]
	[F02-OP3.1]
	[F02-OS1.2, OS1.5]

(3)	[F02-OP1.2]
	[F02-OP3.1]
	[F02-OS1.2, OS1.5]
(4)	[F02-OP1.2]
	[F02-OP3.1]
	[F02-OS1.2, OS1.5]
<b>6.8A.1.1. Installation</b>	
(1)	[F01, F81-OS1.1]
	[F01, F82-OP1.1]
(2)	[F12-OP1.2]
	[F12-OS1.2, OS1.5]

[Note: The brackets surrounding the text in the right-hand column of the table rows added to Table 6.9.1.1. are part of the regulations and do not indicate editorial corrections made by the Office of the Registrar of Regulations.]

9 Section 35 of the regulations is amended by

- (a) striking out “9.7.1.” in added Sentence 8.1.1.8.(4) and substituting “9.9.10.”;
- (b) striking out “Articles 9.9.2.2. and 9.9.2.3.” in added Sentence 8.1.1.9.(1) and substituting “Article 9.9.2.1.”;
- (c) striking out “Articles 9.9.2.2. and 9.9.2.3.” in added Sentence 8.1.1.11.(4) and substituting “Article 9.9.2.1.”;
- (d) adding the following Section immediately after added Section 8.1.:

**Section 8.2. Objectives and Functional Statements**

**8.2.1. Objectives and Functional Statements**

**8.2.1.1. Attribution to Acceptable Solutions**

- 1) For the purposes of compliance with this Code as required in Clause 1.2.1.1.(1)(b) of Division A, the objectives and functional statements attributed to the acceptable solutions in this Part shall be the objectives and functional statements listed in Table 8.2.1.1. (See Note A-1.1.2.1.(1).)

**Table 8.2.1.1.**  
**Objectives and Functional Statements Attributed to the**  
**Acceptable Solutions in Part 8**  
 Forming Part of Sentence 8.2.1.1.(1)

<b>Functional Statements and Objectives</b>	
<b>8.1.1.1. Application</b>	
(2)	[F03-OS1.2]
	[F03-OP1.2]

<b>8.1.1.3. Floor Assemblies</b>	
(1)	[F03-OS1.2]
	[F03-OP1.2]
(2)	[F03-OS1.2]
	[F03-OP1.2]
<b>8.1.1.4. Basement Fire Separations</b>	
(1)	[F03-OS1.2]
	[F03-OP1.2]
<b>8.1.1.5. Wall Separating Bedrooms</b>	
(1)	[F03-OS1.2]
	[F03-OP1.2]
<b>8.1.1.6. Furnace Room Fire Separations</b>	
(1)	[F03-OS1.2]
	[F03-OP1.2]
(2)	[F03-OS1.2]
	[F03-OP1.2]
(3)	[F03-OS1.2]
	[F03-OP1.2]
(4)	[F03-OS1.2]
	[F03-OP1.2]
(5)	[F03-OS1.2]
	[F03-OP1.2]
(6)	[F03-OS1.2]
	[F03-OP1.2]
<b>8.1.1.7. Combustion Air</b>	
(1)	[F01, F81, F82 - OP1.2, OP1.1]
	[F81, F82 - OS3.4]
	[F01, F81, F82 - OS1.1, OS1.2]
<b>8.1.1.8. Means of Egress</b>	
(1)	[F10 - OS3.7]
(2)	[F10 - OS3.7]
(3)	[F10 - OS3.7]
(4)	[F10 - OS3.7]
<b>8.1.1.9. Acceptable Exits</b>	
(1)	[F10 - OS3.7]
(2)	[F10 - OS3.7]

(3)	[F10 - OS3.7]
(4)	[F10 - OS3.7]
<b>8.1.1.10. Approval of Fire Official</b>	
(1)	[F10 - OS3.7]
<b>8.1.1.11. Fire Escapes</b>	
(1)	[F05-OS1.5]
	[F06-OS1.2]
	[F10, F12 - OS3.7]
	[F20 - OS3.1]
	[F20 - OS2.1]
	[F30 - OS3.1]
(2)	[F05 - OS1.5]
	[F06 - OS1.2]
	[F10, F12 - OS3.7]
	[F20 - OS3.1]
	[F20 - OS2.1]
	[F30 - OS3.1]
(3)	[F30 - OS3.1]
	[F10 - OS3.7]
(4)	[F05-OS1.5]
	[F06-OS1.2]
	[F10, F12 - OS3.7]
	[F20 - OS3.1] [F20 - OS2.1] [F20 - OS3.1]
<b>8.1.1.12 Protection of Exits</b>	
(1)	[F05 - OS1.5]
	[F03 - OS1.2]
	[F03 - OP1.2]
(2)	[F05 - OS1.5]
	[F03 - OS1.2]
	[F03 - OP1.2]
(3)	[F05 - OS1.5]
	[F03 - OS1.2]
	[F03 - OP1.2]

<b>8.1.1.13. Interior Stairways</b>	
(1)	[F04 - OS1.2]
	[F03 - OP1.2, OP1.3]
(2)	[F10 - OS3.7]
(3)	[F05 - OS1.5]
	[F03 - OS1.2]
	[F03 - OP1.2]
<b>8.1.1.14. Protection of Openings in Fire Separations</b>	
(1)	[F03 - OS1.2]
	[F03 - OP1.2]
(2)	[F03 - OS1.2]
	[F03 - OP1.2]
(3)	[F03 - OS1.2]
	[F03 - OP1.2]
(4)	[F03 - OS1.2]
	[F03 - OP1.2]
(5)	[F03 - OS1.2]
	[F03 - OP1.2]
<b>8.1.1.15. Exit Signs</b>	
(1)	[F10, F81 - OS3.7]
<b>8.1.1.16. Interior Finishes</b>	
(1)	[F02 - OS1.2]
<b>8.1.1.17. Illumination of Egress</b>	
(1)	[F30 - OS3.1]
	[F30 - OS3.7]
<b>8.1.1.18. Emergency Lighting</b>	
(1)	[F30 - OS3.1]
	[F10 - OS3.7]
<b>8.1.1.19 Fire Alarm Requirement</b>	
(1)	[F-11 - OS1.5]
	[F13 - OS1.2, OS1.5]
	[F03 - OS1.2]
(2)	[F11 - OS1.5]
	[F13 - OS2.1, OS1.5]
	[F03 - OS1.2]
(3)	[F81, F11 - OS1.5]



(4)	[F11 - OS1.5]
	[F13 - OS1.2, OS1.5]
	[F03 - OS1.2]
(5)	[F81, F11 - OS1.5]
(6)	[F81, F11 - OS1.5]
<b>8.1.1.20. Fire Suppression</b>	
(1)	[F81, F02, F12 - OS1.2]
	[F81, F02, F12 - OP1.2]
(2)	[F81, F02, F12 - OS1.2]
	[F81, F02, F12 - OP1.2]

[Note: The brackets surrounding the text in the right-hand column of Table 8.2.1.1. added as part of Section 8.2. of the regulations are part of the regulations and do not indicate editorial corrections made by the Office of the Registrar of Regulations.]

### N.S. Reg. 69/2017

Made: April 13, 2017

Filed: April 19, 2017

Prescribed Petroleum Products Prices

Order dated April 13, 2017  
made by the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board  
pursuant to Section 14 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act*  
and Sections 16 to 19 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations*

**Order**

**M08001**

**In the matter of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act***

- and -

**In the matter of prescribing prices for petroleum products  
pursuant to Section 14 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act* and  
Sections 16 to 19 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations***

**Before:** Roland A. Deveau, Q.C., Vice Chair

**Whereas** the purpose of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations* is to ensure just and reasonable prices for specified petroleum products taking into consideration the objectives of preserving the availability of such products in rural areas, stabilizing prices of such products and minimizing the variances in prices of such products across the Province;

**And whereas** the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board (“Board”) considered the manner in which it would proceed to set petroleum product prices in its decision, 2006 NSUARB 108, issued on October 16, 2006;

**And whereas** the Board revised the wholesale margin effective January 4, 2013, in its decision, 2012 NSUARB 213, issued on December 12, 2012;

**And whereas** the Board revised the retail margin and the transportation allowance effective October 28, 2016, in its decision, 2016 NSUARB 168, issued on September 26, 2016;

**And whereas** the average of the average of the daily high and low reported product prices (in Canadian cents) for the week ended April 12, 2017, are:

Grade 1 Regular gasoline	60.8¢ per litre
Ultra-low-sulfur diesel oil	57.6¢ per litre

**Now therefore** the Board prescribes the benchmark prices for petroleum products to be:

Gasoline:	
Grade 1	60.8¢ per litre
Grade 2	63.8¢ per litre
Grade 3	66.8¢ per litre
Ultra-low-sulfur diesel oil	57.6¢ per litre

**And now therefore** the Board has determined, based on historical data regarding price changes and to achieve revenue neutrality, it is appropriate to apply, and the Board so orders, forward averaging corrections of:

Gasoline:	plus 1.3¢ per litre
Ultra-low-sulfur diesel oil:	plus 0.8¢ per litre

**And whereas** a winter blending adjustment of plus 1.1¢ per litre is required for ultra-low-sulfur diesel oil;

**And now therefore** the Board prescribes the prices for petroleum products as set forth in Schedule “A” effective on and after 12:01 a.m., April 14, 2017.

**Dated** at Halifax, Nova Scotia, this 13th day of April, 2017.

sgd: *Doreen Friis*  
Clerk of the Board

#### Schedule “A”

**Prices Prescribed for Petroleum Products  
under the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act* and the  
*Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations*  
effective on and after 12:01 a.m. on April 14, 2017**

Nova Scotia Petroleum Price Schedule								
Petroleum Prices in Cents/Litre					Self-Service Pump Prices		Full-Service Pump Prices	
					(Pump Prices includes 15% HST)			
	Base Wholesale Price	Fed. Excise Tax	Prov. Tax	Wholesale Selling Price	Min	Max	Min	Max
<b>Zone 1</b>								
Regular Unleaded	69.3	10.0	15.5	94.8	114.9	117.1	114.9	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	72.3	10.0	15.5	97.8	118.3	120.5	118.3	999.9
Premium Unleaded	75.3	10.0	15.5	100.8	121.8	124.0	121.8	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	66.8	4.0	15.4	86.2	105.0	107.2	105.0	999.9
<b>Zone 2</b>								
Regular Unleaded	69.8	10.0	15.5	95.3	115.5	117.6	115.5	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	72.8	10.0	15.5	98.3	118.9	121.1	118.9	999.9
Premium Unleaded	75.8	10.0	15.5	101.3	122.4	124.5	122.4	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	67.3	4.0	15.4	86.7	105.6	107.8	105.6	999.9

<b>Zone 3</b>								
Regular Unleaded	70.2	10.0	15.5	95.7	115.9	118.1	115.9	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	73.2	10.0	15.5	98.7	119.4	121.6	119.4	999.9
Premium Unleaded	76.2	10.0	15.5	101.7	122.8	125.0	122.8	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	67.7	4.0	15.4	87.1	106.0	108.2	106.0	999.9
<b>Zone 4</b>								
Regular Unleaded	70.3	10.0	15.5	95.8	116.0	118.2	116.0	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	73.3	10.0	15.5	98.8	119.5	121.7	119.5	999.9
Premium Unleaded	76.3	10.0	15.5	101.8	122.9	125.1	122.9	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	67.8	4.0	15.4	87.2	106.1	108.3	106.1	999.9
<b>Zone 5</b>								
Regular Unleaded	70.3	10.0	15.5	95.8	116.0	118.2	116.0	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	73.3	10.0	15.5	98.8	119.5	121.7	119.5	999.9
Premium Unleaded	76.3	10.0	15.5	101.8	122.9	125.1	122.9	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	67.8	4.0	15.4	87.2	106.1	108.3	106.1	999.9
<b>Zone 6</b>								
Regular Unleaded	71.0	10.0	15.5	96.5	116.8	119.0	116.8	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	74.0	10.0	15.5	99.5	120.3	122.5	120.3	999.9
Premium Unleaded	77.0	10.0	15.5	102.5	123.7	125.9	123.7	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	68.5	4.0	15.4	87.9	107.0	109.1	107.0	999.9